
1 
 

NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING  

  June 8, 2023                6:00 PM                  Auditorium of the Middle School 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.  Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Approval of Agenda 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and pursuant to 
Education Law, approves the agenda of June 8, 2023. 
 
Motion for approval by _______, seconded by _______, all in favor ____-____. 
 
2.  Presentations: 

• Dr. Ramos Recognition 
• Student Presentation – High School 

 Senior, Jenna Bullard 
• North Rose-Wolcott Directors– Lisa Brower, Todd Henry, Rita Lopez, Fred Prince, Ben Stopka 

 School Improvement Plan – Update 
• Director of Business Operations & Finance– Gary Barno 

 Report of Reserve Funds and Use of Reserves Policy 
• Superintendent Update – Michael Pullen 

 
3.  Reports and Correspondence: 

• Policy Committee – Paul Statskey, Shelly Cahoon, Tina Reed 
 First Reading: The following policies are being submitted for a first reading. 

 
7000 Students  
7110 Comprehensive Student Attendance Revised 
7611 Children with Disabilities Revised 
7613 The Role of the Board in Implementing A Students Individualized Education 

Program 
Revised 

8000 Instruction  
8220 Career and Technical (Occupational) education Revised 
8320 Selection of Library and Multimedia Materials Revised 
8241 Patriotism, Citizenship and Human Rights Education Delete 

 
 The Committee has reviewed the following policies and does not recommend any 

changes: 
 

7000 Students  
7514 Student Health Records Reviewed 
7612 Grouping by Similarity of Needs Reviewed 
7643 Transfer Students with Disabilities Reviewed 

 
4.  Public Access to the Board: 

This time is provided for residents of the District to address the Board of Education.  Persons wishing to 
 speak must complete the sign in sheet and be recognized by the President. The speaker will be allowed three 
 minutes to address the Board of Education. 

 
 



2 
 

5.  Consent Agenda: 
A motion for approval of items as listed under the CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS is made by _______, and seconded 
by_______ any discussion- All in favor ___-___. 
 
a. Board of Education Meeting Minutes  

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of May 25, 2023. 
 

b. Recommendations from CSE and CPSE 
RESOLUTION  

 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
 pursuant to Education Law, approves the recommendations for the Committee on Special Education dated 
 May 12, 17, 22, 23 30, June 1, and 5, 2023; and instructs the Superintendent to implement the 
 recommendations on  behalf of the following individuals identified by student number:    
 

13836 14572 14305 14255 13965 14118 14620 14031 13829 14019 
14763 13076 14133 14669 14294 13366 14069 13842 14161 14864 
14692 14587 14664 14661 14858 14728     

 
c. Treasurer Report 

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the Treasurer Report for April 2023. 
 

d. Provisional Employment of Staff  
RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, authorizes the Superintendent to provisionally employ staff necessary for the 
Academic and Enrichment Program Appointments for the 2023-2024 school year until their official Board 
of Education appointment.  
 

e. Final Reserve Fund Plan 
RESOLUTION 

               Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
 pursuant to Education Law, approves the Report of Reserve Funds and Use of Reserves Policy to be 
 updated annually. 

 
f. Funds Transfer 

RESOLUTION  
 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and  

pursuant to Education Law, approves the transfers of up to $50,000 to the EBALR Reserve,  
up to $375,000 to the (ERS) Retirement Contribution Reserve Account, up to $200,000 to the    
TRS Reserve Account, up to $725,000 to the Capital Bus Reserve, and up to $2,500,000 to the Capital    

               Building Reserve Account to be funded with unexpended funds as of June 30, 2023, in accordance with the   
               District’s Funding and Use of Reserves Policy. 
 

g. Reasonable Assurance Letters 
RESOLUTION 

               Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools  and 
 pursuant to Education Law, authorizes the Director of Human Resources to transmit reasonable 
 assurance letters in compliance with Federal Unemployment Act enacted under Public Law 94-566, to all 



3 
 

 eligible and active employees for the 2023-2024 school year, commencing on July 1, 2023 and ending June 
 30, 2024. 

 
h. Personnel Items: 

1. Letter of Resignation – Victoria Kata 
Victoria Kata has submitted a letter of resignation as English Teacher. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Victoria Kata as English Teacher effective June 
23, 2023. 
 

2. Letter of Resignation – Dylan Bartlett 
Dylan Bartlett has submitted a letter of resignation as English Teacher. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Dylan Bartlett as English Teacher effective 
June 30, 2023. 
 

3. Leave of Absence – Leisel Everdyke 
Leisel Everdyke, Elementary Teacher, is requesting an unpaid child rearing leave of absence to 
commence on approximately October 27, 2023 through December 7, 2023.  
 

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the unpaid child rearing leave of absence for Leisel Everdyke 
from approximately October 27, 2023 through December 7, 2023. 
 

4. Appoint Elementary Teacher – Alexis Ball 
Christie Graves recommends Alexis Ball to fill an Elementary Teacher position. 
 

         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools          
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the four-year probationary appointment of Alexis Ball 
         as an Elementary Teacher conditional upon a criminal history record check according to     
                       Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 

 Certification: Childhood Education, Grades 1-6, Initial 
 Tenure Area: Elementary 
 Probationary Period: August 29, 2023-August 28, 2027 
 Salary: Step A, $48,514 

         The expiration date is tentative and conditional only.  In order to be eligible for and considered for         
        tenure, the teacher must meet all requirements of the educational law and corresponding regulations. 
 

5. Appoint School Lunch Manger – Rita Lopez 
Gary Barno recommends Rita Lopez as School Lunch Manager. 
 
RESOLUTION 

        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and         
        pursuant to Education Law, approves the probationary appointment of Rita Lopez as School Lunch                    
                      Manager conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners Regulation §80   
                      1.11 and Part 87.   
 



4 
 

   Probationary Period:  May 23, 2023-July 17, 2023 
   Salary:  Contract is on file with the District Clerk. 
 

6. Summer Curriculum Writing/Professional Development 
          RESOLUTION 
          Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and               

        pursuant to Education Law approves the following individuals to participate in curriculum writing  
        workshops in July-August 2023 at $35.00/hr. 
 

         Alexis Ball 
 

7. Academic and Enrichment Summer Program Appointments 
         The following individuals are being recommended to work in the summer academic and enrichment   
          programs that are funded by grants. 
 

         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools               
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work various summer academic     
         and enrichment programs from July 1, 2023 through August 19, 2023 conditional upon a criminal        
         history record check according to Commissioners Regulation §80-1.11 and Part 87.  
 

Staff Position $/Hr. 
Christina Marriott Summer Food Service Supervisor $20.41/hr. 

 
8. Academic and Enrichment Summer Program Appointments 

         The following individuals are being recommended to work in the summer academic and enrichment   
         programs that are funded by grants. 
 

         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools               
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work various summer academic     
         and enrichment programs from June 1, 2023 through August 19, 2023 conditional upon a criminal        
         history record check according to Commissioners Regulation §80-1.11 and Part 87.  

 
Staff Position $/Hr. 
Laurinda Collins Grant Program Teaching Assistant $19.10/hr. 
Allison Thompson Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Brenda Mitchell Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Sally Brown Grant Program Teacher Aide $17.25/hr, 
Hailey DeNoto Grant Program Teacher Aide $16.00/hr. 
Sundra Wendt Grant Program Teacher Aide $17.60/hr. 

 
9. Appoint Extended School Year (ESY) Summer School Staff 

Sara McLean is recommending the following individuals to staff the Special Education Summer School 
Program. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, appoints the following individuals to fill positions for Special Education 
Summer School, from July 1, 2023 through August 18, 2023. 
 

Name Position Salary 
Emma Bundy ESY Teacher Aide $15.25/hr. 



5 
 

 
 

10. Program Appointments 
         The following individuals are being recommended to work in enrichment programs that are funded by    
        grants. 
 

         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools               
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work various enrichment    
         programs during the 2023-2024 school year conditional upon a criminal history record check    
         according to Commissioners Regulation §80-1.11 and Part 87.  
 

Staff Position $/Hr. 
Adam Bishop Learning Technology Coach $35.00/hr. 
Meagan Pentycofe Learning Technology Coach $35.00/hr. 
Amanda Johnson Learning Technology Coach $35.00/hr. 
Joanna Samar Learning Technology Coach $35.00/hr. 
Amy Wiktorowicz Learning Technology Coach $35.00/hr. 

 
11. Aquatics Program 

Marc Blankenberg is recommending the following individual to fill a Water Safety Instructors and/or 
Lifeguard or Program Director position.   
 

 RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and     
                      pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individual as Water Safety Instructors and/or     
        Lifeguards or Program Directors for all swim programs during the 2023-2024 school year.   
 

Name Position(s) Rate/Hr. 
Jolee Stubee Lifeguard $14.20/hr. 
Autumn Davenport Swim Program Director $23.50/hr, 

 
12. Appoint Volunteers 

RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and          
        pursuant to Education Law approves the following individuals to work as a volunteer in the district for  
        the 2022-2023 school year. 

 
Irene Interlichia Chelsey Tryon Alexander Wells  

 
6.  Policies 

A motion for approval of items as listed under Policies is made by _______, and seconded by_______ any discussion- All 
in favor ___-___. 
 
1. Approval of Policies 

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the following new and/or revised policies: 

 
7000 Students  
7420 Sports and the Athletic Program Revised 
7521 Students with Life Threatening Health Conditions Revised 
7530 Child Abuse and Maltreatment Revised 



6 
 

7550 Dignity for All Students Revised 
7553 Hazing of Students Revised 
7580 Safe Public School Choice Options Revised 
8000 Instruction  
8130 Equal Educational Opportunities Revised 
8210 Safety Conditions and Prevention Instruction Delete 
8230 Instruction in Certain Subjects Delete 
8440 Home Instruction Revised 

 
7.  Items requiring a roll call vote: 
A motion for approval Item #1 is made by _________ and seconded by ________it was adopted and the following votes 
were cast: 

 
1. Appropriation of Contingent Expense and Emergency Capital Project 

 WHEREAS, the Domestic Hot Water Boiler at the North Rose Wolcott Elementary Building has failed 
 unexpectedly  and requires immediate replacement to avoid substantial impact to the functions of the 
 building and to ensure the health, safety and the welfare of the staff and students. 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to NYS General Municipal Law 103(4) the Board of Education of North Rose Wolcott 
 Central School District (the “District”) has considered of the opinion of architect SEI Design Group regarding 
 their recommendation that immediate steps need to be taken to re-establish an operational Hot Water Boiler 
 System with two storage tanks at North Rose Elementary School used for educational purposes. 
 
 WHEREAS, the lack of an operational Domestic Hot Water Boiler at the North Rose Wolcott Elementary 
 Building constitutes an emergency which threatens the health and safety of the occupants of the building and 
 requires the District to take appropriate immediate action which cannot await competitive bidding as 
 otherwise may be required, so as to ensure the protection of District property and the health, safety and 
 welfare of the staff and students. 
 
 WHEREAS, the lack of an operational Domestic Hot Water Boiler at the North Rose Wolcott Elementary 
 Building requires the District to take immediate action to remove and replace the hot water boiler system. 
 
 WHEREAS, the District recommends the removal and replacement of the hot water boiler system be 
 performed in a manner to be as least burdensome as possible while simultaneously protecting human health 
 and the environment. 
 
 WHEREAS, to complete the removal and replacement of the hot water boiler system, the District is required 
 to hire qualified, certified and/or licensed contractor(s) to perform and complete the work. 
 
 WHEREAS, the New York State Education Department has determined that expenses incurred to mitigate 
 the effects of an emergency are ordinary contingent expenses that can be funded by a school district’s 
 unallocated fund balance.  
 
 WHEREAS, the District is authorized to utilize the unallocated fund balance for the current fiscal year to pay 
 the costs to be incurred to complete the removal and replacement of the hot water boiler system.  
 
 WHEREAS, the removal and replacement of the hot water boiler system is in the best interests of the District 
 given its emergency nature and impact on District property and student and staff health and safety. 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is the lead agency with regard to the proposed project under the provisions of SEQRA. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 
 



7 
 

1. The District declares the removal and replacement of the Domestic Hot Water Boiler at the North 
 Rose Wolcott Elementary Building is an emergency which threatens the health and safety of the staff 
 and students and District property. 
 
2. The District declares that the necessary replacement and repair of the Domestic Hot Water Boiler at 
 the North Rose Wolcott Elementary Building and associated mechanical equipment is a SEQR Type II 
 Action requiring no further review. 

 
3. The District hereby finds the removal and replacement of the Domestic Hot Water Boiler at the North 
 Rose Wolcott Elementary Building as essential for the protection of the health and safety of the staff 
 and students and for protection of the District’s property, requires immediate action which cannot 
 await competitive bidding and hereby declares the project to be an ordinary contingent expense 
 (hereinafter “Project”) and authorizes an Emergency Capital Project for approximately $70,000 to 
 remedy the conditions (the “Expenditure”) from the District’s unallocated fund balance to complete 
 the Project. 
 
4. The District authorizes the Superintendent to select a licensed and/or certified contractor(s) to 
 conduct removal, repair, operations and maintenance work to complete the necessary responsive 
 action to complete the Project in order to protect District property and the health and safety of the 
 staff and students.  
 
5. The District authorizes the Superintendent to enter into contract(s) with contractor(s) to complete 
 the Project according to terms of a contract(s) approved by counsel to the District.  
 
6. The District declares the Expenditure constitutes an ordinary contingent expense within the meaning 
 of Education Law Section 2023. 

 
7. The Superintendent and all officers and employees of the District are hereby authorized and directed 
 to take all steps reasonably necessary or appropriate to complete the Project and to carry out the 
 intent of this Resolution and to apply for any eligible state building aid, if applicable. 

 
8. This Resolution shall take effect immediately and shall also ratify previous actions undertaken by the 
 District staff to implement the Project, to protect and preserve District property and ensure the 
 health  and safety of the staff and students under the circumstances. 
 

 The vote on this Resolution was as follows: 
 

Lucinda Collier 
Jasen Sloan 
John Boogaard 
Shelly Cahoon 
Linda Eygnor 
Tina Reed 
Paul Statskey 

Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 

_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 

 
A motion for approval Item #2 is made by _________ and seconded by ________it was adopted and the following votes 
were cast: 
 

2. Program Appointments 
 The following individuals are being recommended to work in enrichment programs that are funded by    
grants. 
 

  RESOLUTION 



8 
 

  Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools               
  and pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work various enrichment    
  programs during the 2023-2024 school year conditional upon a criminal history record check    
  according to Commissioners Regulation §80-1.11 and Part 87.  
 

Staff Position $/Hr. 
Casie DeWispelaere Learning Technology Coach $35.00/hr. 

 
Lucinda Collier 
Jasen Sloan 
John Boogaard 
Shelly Cahoon 
Linda Eygnor 
Tina Reed 
Paul Statskey 

Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 

_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 

 
A motion for approval Item #3 is made by _________ and seconded by ________it was adopted and the following votes 
were cast: 
 

3. Aquatics Program 
 Marc Blankenberg is recommending the following individual to fill a Water Safety Instructors and/or 
 Lifeguard or Program Director position.   

 
                RESOLUTION 
  Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and     
                pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individual as Water Safety Instructors and/or     
  Lifeguards or Program Directors for all swim programs during the 2023-2024 school year.   
 
 
 
 
 

Lucinda Collier 
Jasen Sloan 
John Boogaard 
Shelly Cahoon 
Linda Eygnor 
Tina Reed 
Paul Statskey 

Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 
Voting 

_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
_____ yes           ______ no 
______ yes         ______ no 

 
Board Member Requests/Comments/Discussion: 
 
Good News 
 
Informational Items: 

• Claims Auditor Reports 
 

Motion for Adjournment: 
 
       There being no further business or discussion, a motion is requested adjourn the regular meeting. 
 
Motion for approval by ______, seconded by ______, with motion approved ____-____.  Time adjourned: ___:___ p.m 

Name Position(s) Rate/Hr. 
Avery Boogaard Lifeguard $14.20/hr. 

















































 

128 
 

NORTH ROSE-WOLCOTT CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

May 25, 2023                6:00 PM                  Auditorium of the Middle School 
 

PRESENT: 
BOE Members: Lucinda Collier, John Boogaard, Shelly Cahoon, Linda Eygnor, Tina Reed, Jasen Sloan, Paul Statskey 
Superintendent:  Michael Pullen 
District Clerk: Tina St. John 
 
Approximately 19 students, staff and guests. 
 
1.  Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

President, Lucinda Callier called the meeting to order at 6:00p.m.  
 
Approval of Agenda: 

       Motion for approval was made by Paul Statskey and seconded by Jasen Sloan with the motion approve 7-0. 
       
      Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and      
      pursuant to Education Law, approves the agenda of May 25, 2023.  
 
2.  Presentations: 

• Student Presentation – North Rose Wolcott Elementary School Students 
 4th Graders, Reagan Boogaard and Maximo Hernandez Vasquez were the student 

presenters 
• North Rose-Wolcott High Directors– Laurie Elliott, Sara McLean 

  NRW Directors presented the update of the School Improvement Plan and answered 
questions. 

• Athletic Update – Marc Blankenberg 
 Mr. Blankenberg provided an overview and answered questions regarding the Athletic 

Program. 
• Superintendent Update – Michael Pullen 

 Mr. Pullen thanked the community at large for a successful vote. 
 Mr. Pullen congratulated our Special Olympians. 
 Mr. Pullen congratulated Clara Madison on receiving the DAR Good Citizen Award. 
 Mr. Pullen provided the end of year date changes. 

 
3.  Reports and Correspondence: Committee chairperson or liaison provided an update. 

• Board of Education Building Liaisons  
 Elementary School –Linda Eygnor 
 Middle School – Paul Statskey 
 High School – Tina Reed  

• Four County Update – Linda Eygnor 
• Handbook Committee – Lucinda Collier, Tina Reed, Jasen Sloan – no report given 
• Audit Committee –John Boogaard, Shelly Cahoon, Linda Eygnor – no report given 
• Building & Grounds/Capital Project/Energy Committee – Jasen Sloan, Shelly Cahoon,  

Paul Statskey – no report given 
• District Safety Committee – Jasen Sloan – no report given 
• Alternative Learning Center – Jasen Sloan – no report given 
• Policy Committee – Paul Statskey, Shelly Cahoon, Tina Reed  

 First Reading: The following policies are being submitted for a first reading. 
 
 



 

129 
 

7000 Students  
7420 Sports and the Athletic Program Revised 
7521 Students with Life Threatening Health Conditions Revised 
7530 Child Abuse and Maltreatment Revised 
7550 Dignity for All Students Revised 
7553 Hazing of Students Revised 
7580 Safe Public School Choice Options Revised 
8000 Instruction  
8130 Equal Educational Opportunities Revised 
8210 Safety Conditions and Prevention Instruction Delete 
8230 Instruction in Certain Subjects Delete 
8440 Home Instruction Revised 

 
4.  Public Access to the Board: 

• No one addressed the Board of Education 
 
5.  Consent Agenda: 

A motion for approval of the following items as listed under the CONSENT AGENDA is made by Shelly Cahoon 
and seconded by Linda Eygnor with the motion approved 7-0. 
 
a. Board of Education Meeting Minutes  

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of May 4, 2023. 
 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the Meeting Minutes of May 16, 2023. 
 

b. Recommendations from CSE and CPSE 
RESOLUTION  

 Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
 pursuant to Education Law, approves the recommendations for the Committee on Special Education dated 
 April 19, 26, 28, May 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 10, and 15, 2023; and instructs the Superintendent to implement the 
 recommendations on behalf of the following individuals identified by student number:    
 
  

 

 
 

c. Substitute Teachers and Substitute Service Personnel  
 RESOLUTION 

Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the individuals named on the substitute lists, which are on file with 
the District Clerk.  
 

d. Cooperative Purchasing Services 2023-24 – CiTi BOCES 
 

              FOOD AND CAFETERIA SUPPLIES   
SCHOOL YEAR 2023-2024 

 

11734 12924 12955 14859 11779 13901 11335 12440 12561 11781 
13735 14235 14878 13798 14060 14864 14457 13392 14853 13691 
14723 14368 14367 13776 12328 13865 13236 13005 12547 14753 
14870 13841 13292 14686 11818 14550 13170 13558 13910 14330 



 

130 
 

WHEREAS, 
It is a plan of a number of public school districts in the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational 
Services Area in New York (known as the Center for Instruction, Technology & Innovation [CiTi]), to bid 
jointly Cafeteria supplies including but not limited to food and paper items, and 

WHEREAS, 
The North Rose-Wolcott Central School is desirous of participating with other districts in the Oswego 
County Board of Cooperative Educational Services/CiTi area in the joint bidding of the commodities 
mentioned above as authorized by General Municipal Law, Section 119-o, and 

WHEREAS, 
The North Rose-Wolcott Central School wishes to appoint a committee made up of participating schools to 
assume the responsibility for drafting of specifications, advertising for bids, accepting and opening bids, 
tabulating bids and awarding bids and reporting the results to the schools; therefore; 

BE IT RESOLVED, 
That the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School hereby appoints the Oswego 
County Board of Cooperative Educational Services/CiTi to represent it in all matters relating above, and 
designates the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services/CiTi designated newspaper(s) 
as the legal publication(s) for all Cooperative Purchasing bid notifications, and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, 
That the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School authorizes the above committee to 
represent it in all matters leading up to the entering into a contract for the purchase of the above 
mentioned commodities, and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, 
That the Board of Education of the North Rose-Wolcott Central School agrees to (1) assume its equitable 
share of the costs of the Cooperative Bidding; (2) abide by majority decisions of the participating districts 
on quality standards; (3) abide by the Award of the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational 
Services/CiTi according to the recommendations of the committee; (4) and that after the award of the bid 
it will conduct all negotiations directly with the successful bidder(s). 

e. Revised 2023-2024 Board of Education Meeting Calendar  
 RESOLUTION 

Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law adopts the revised 2023-2024 Board of Education Meeting Calendar. 
 

f. Future Business Leaders of America FBLA Overnight Field Trip 
Business Teacher Jennifer Judge is planning to take two (2) members of the Future Business Leaders of 
America Club to Atlanta, Georgia to compete in state and national competitive events. The cost of this trip 
and overnight stay will be paid for by FBLA, fundraising and a grant. 
 

               RESOLUTION 
               Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and                   
               pursuant to Education Law, approves the Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA) Club overnight field  
               trip to Atlanta, GA on June 26, 2023-July 1, 2023. Jennifer Judge will serve as a chaperone and the trip will                     
               be paid for by FBLA, fundraising and a grant. 
 

g. Amendment to 2022-2023 Budget 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approve the budget amendment in the amount of $93,137 from appropriated 
fund balance and amend the 2022-2023 budget by an increase of $23,632 to the contractual code A-5510-
400-06-0000 and $69,505 to equipment code 5510-200-06-0000. 



 

131 
 

 
h. Personnel Items: 

1. Termination of Employment – Debra Buettner 
RESOLUTION 

        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools  
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the termination of employment of Debra Buettner as a  
        Teacher Aide and Grant Program Teacher Aide, effective with the close of business on May 12, 2023. 

 
2. Letter of Resignation – Ashley Sherman 

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Ashley Sherman as School Psychologist 
effective May 12, 2023. 
 

3. Letter of Resignation –Carlotta Ford 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Carlotta Ford as Cleaner effective May 19, 
2023. 
 

4. Letter of Resignation – Tina Guerra 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Tina Guerra as Teacher Aide effective April 9, 
2023. 
 

5. Letter of Resignation – Karen Haak 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Karen Haak as Elementary Teacher effective 
June 30, 2023. 
 

6. Letter of Resignation –Shawn Brown 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Shawn Brown as Automotive Mechanic 
effective June 1, 2023. 
 

7. Letter of Resignation – Tammi Murtha 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Tammi Murtha as School Media Specialist 
effective June 16, 2023. 
 

8. Letter of Resignation – Cathy Grasso 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law accepts the resignation from Cathy Grasso as Social Worker effective June 
30, 2023 
 

9. Leave of Absence – Jennifer Schmiegel 
        RESOLUTION 



 

132 
 

        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
                      pursuant to Education Law approves the unpaid leave of absence for Jennifer Schmiegel from   
                      approximately May 3, 2023 through June 30, 2023. 
 

10. Leave of Absence – Erica Ragan 
        RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
                      pursuant to Education Law approves the unpaid leave of absence for Erica Ragan from   
                      approximately May 3, 2023 through June 23, 2023. 
 

11. Permanent Appointment –Karena Anderson 
       RESOLUTION 
       Be it resolved, that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools                      
       and pursuant to Education Law approves the permanent appointment of Karena Anderson as  
       Cleaner effective December 13, 2022. 
 
12. Permanent Appointment –Joseph Durell 
       RESOLUTION 
       Be it resolved, that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools                      
       and pursuant to Education Law approves the permanent appointment of Joseph Durell as  
       Maintenance Worker effective December 13, 2022. 

 
13. Appoint Sr. Clerk Typist – Harley Seager 

        RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools    
        and pursuant to Education Law, approves the 52- week probationary appointment of Harley Seager as a      
                      Senior Clerk Typist, conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners   
                      Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 
        Probationary Period:  June 12, 2023-June 11, 2024 
                      Salary:  $19.00/hour 
 

14. Appoint Bus Driver-Linda Maeske 
RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the 52-week probationary appointment of Linda Maeske as a Bus 
Driver conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners Regulation §80 
1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 

Probationary Period: June 12, 2023-June 11, 2024 
Salary: $23.00/hr. 
 

15. Appoint School Monitor – Linda Maeske 
         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools     
                       and pursuant to Education Law approves the 52-week probationary appointment of Linda Maeske    
                       as a School Monitor conditional upon a criminal history record check according to     
                       commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 
                     Probationary Period: June 12, 2023-June 11, 2024 
               Salary: $15.00/hr. 

 



 

133 
 

16. Appoint Teaching Assistant –Tina Guerra 
  RESOLUTION 

                      Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools  
                      and pursuant to Education Law, approves the four-year probationary appointment of Tina Guerra as  
                      a Teaching Assistant conditional upon a criminal history record check according to Commissioners    
                      Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 

 
 Certification:  Teaching Assistant, Level I 
 Tenure Area:  Teaching Assistant 
 Probationary Period: April 10, 2023-April 9, 2027 
 Salary: Step A,    $21,711 

                The expiration date is tentative and conditional only.  In order to be eligible for and considered for         
        tenure, the teacher must meet all requirements of the educational law and corresponding     
                regulations. 
 

17. Appoint Elementary Teacher – Sydney Coe 
         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools          
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the four-year probationary appointment of Sydney Coe 
         as an Elementary Teacher conditional upon a criminal history record check according to     
                      Commissioners Regulation §80 1.11 and Part 87 as follows: 
 

 Certification: Childhood Education, Grades 1-6, Initial 
 Tenure Area: Elementary 
 Probationary Period: August 29, 2023-August 28, 2027 
 Salary: Step C, $50,790.00 

         The expiration date is tentative and conditional only.  In order to be eligible for and considered for         
        tenure, the teacher must meet all requirements of the educational law and corresponding regulations 
 

18. Appoint Elementary Assistant Principal – Karen Haak 
        RESOLUTION 
  Be it resolved, that on the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, the Board of Education      
                      hereby appoints Karen Haak who holds a School Building Leader certification to a four year         
                      probationary appointment in the tenure area of Assistant Principal, with the probationary appointment    
                      commencing on July 1, 2023 expiring on June 30, 2027 (unless extended in accordance   
                      with the law). This expiration date is tentative and conditional only. Except to the extent required by   
                      the applicable provisions of Section 3012 of the Education Law, in order to be granted tenure the  
                      Assistant Principal must receive composite or overall annual professional performance review ratings   
                      pursuant to Section 3012-c and/or 3012-d of the Education Law of either effective or highly effective in  
                      at least three (3) of the four (4) preceding years, and if the Assistant Principal receives an ineffective  
                      composite or overall rating in the final year of the probationary period the Assistant Principal shall not    
                      be eligible for tenure at that time. 

 
                         Certification:    School Building Leader –Initial 

                        Tenure Area:    Assistant Principal 
        Probationary Period:    July 1, 2023-June 30, 2027 
                                    Salary:   $72,500 
 
19. Appoint High School Principal:  Nicole Sinclair 

 RESOLUTION 
                     Be it resolved, that on the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, the Board of Education      
                     hereby appoints Nicole Sinclair, who holds a School Building Leader certification to a four year           



 

134 
 

         probationary appointment in the tenure area of Principal, with the probationary appointment     
             commencing on July 1, 2023 and expiring on June 30, 2027 (unless extended in accordance with the         
         law). This expiration date is tentative and conditional only. Except to the extent required by the           
             applicable provisions of Section 3012 of the Education Law, in order to be granted tenure the Principal           

                      must receive composite or overall annual  professional performance review ratings pursuant to            
                      Section 3012-c and/or 3012-d of the Education Law of either effective or highly effective in at least              
                       three (3) of the four (4) preceding years, and if the Principal receives an ineffective composite or           
         overall rating in the final year of the probationary period the Principal shall not be eligible for tenure                   
                       at that time. 

 
 Certification: School Building Leader – Emergency COVID 19 
 Tenure Area:    Principal 
Probationary Period:    July 1, 2023-June 30, 2027 
              Salary:   $107,900 

 
20. Academic and Enrichment Summer Program Appointments 

         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools               
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work various summer academic     
         and enrichment programs from July 1, 2023 through August 18, 2023 conditional upon a criminal        
         history record check according to Commissioners Regulation §80-1.11 and Part 87.  
 

Staff Position $/Hr. 
Steve Johnson Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Michael Scharvella Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Amy Musengo Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Michael VanDoren Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Maureen Mahoney Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
William McDermott Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Brandon Kapcinski Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Ryan Haskins Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Paul Petersen Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Amy Johnson Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Kaitlyn Bowens Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Mike Flaherty Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Amy Suss Teacher  $39.78/hr. 
Paul Maring Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Cary Merritt Coordinator/Clerk $39.78/hr. 
Keri McQuown Cook $15.45/hr. 
Jody Parrish Food Service Helper $15.71/hr. 
Arline Perce Food Service Helper $18.86/hr. 

 
21. Academic and Enrichment Summer Program Appointments 

         RESOLUTION 
         Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools               
         and pursuant to Education Law, approves the following individuals to work various summer academic     
         and enrichment programs from June 1, 2023 through August 19, 2023 conditional upon a criminal        
         history record check according to Commissioners Regulation §80-1.11 and Part 87.  

 
Staff Position $/Hr. 
Vickie Randall Grant Program Nurse $39.78/hr. 



 

135 
 

Elizabeth Decker Grant Program Nurse $39.78/hr. 
Stephanie Humbert Grant Program Nurse $39.78/hr. 
Colleen Barron Grant Program Nurse $39.78/hr. 
Alex Richwalder Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
David Hahn Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Brian LaValley Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Laurel LaTray Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Alison Maloney Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Sarah Covotta Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Brad LeFevre Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Lucia Copeland Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Patty Weber Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Daniel Kim Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Lindsey Roberts Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Brenda Mitchell Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Jordan Camp Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Julie Norris Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Joanna Samar Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Melissa Mason Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Matt Akerley Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Ashleigh Gerstner Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Kurt Laird Grant Program Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Kimberly Youngman Grant Program Teacher Aide $17.00/hr. 
Lisa Putman Grant Program Teacher Aide $16.97/hr. 
Cindy O’Dell Grant Program Teacher Aide $17.60/hr. 
Crystal Shaft Grant Program Teacher Aide $15.45/hr. 
Christy Grimsley Grant Program Teacher Aide $17.17/hr. 
Stephanie Kerr Grant Program Teacher Aide $16.65/hr. 
Keisha Laird Grant Program Teacher Aide $16.82/hr. 
Danielle Webster Grant Program Teacher Aide $16.05/hr. 
Jen McKown Grant Program Teacher Aide $18.47/hr. 
Chelsea Deon Grant Program Teacher Aide $16.05/hr. 

 
22. Appoint Extended School Year (ESY) Summer School Staff 

RESOLUTION 
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, appoints the following individuals to fill positions for Special Education 
Summer School, from July 1, 2023 through August 18, 2023. 
 

Name Position Salary 
Ashley McDonald ESY Speech Pathologist $39.78/hr. 
Jaime Akerley ESY Speech Pathologist $39.78/hr. effective August 8/7/23 -8/11/23 
Carol Hull ESY Teacher Aide $20.96/hr. 
Chere Poole ESY Teacher Aide $18.81/hr. 
Melissa Stevens ESY Teacher Aide $20.94/hr. 
Kristin Winslow ESY Teacher $39.78/hr. 
Cathy LaValley ESY Teacher $39.78/hr. 

 
23. Appoint K-12 Home/School Liaison 

RESOLUTION 



 

136 
 

Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, approves the appointment of Irene Interlichia as Home/School Liaison at 
$45.00/hr. for the 2023-24 school year to be funded from the McKinney-Vento Homeless Education 
Assistance Grant. 
 

24. Approve Terms & Conditions of Employment 
        RESOLUTION  

Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for employees deemed 
Confidential for the 2023-2024 school year.  The contracts are on file with the District Clerk. 
 

        RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and    
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for the Senior  
Maintenance Mechanic for the 2023-2024 school year.  The contract is on file with the District Clerk. 
 

        RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for Director of Human 
Resources for the period of July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024.  The contract is on file with the District Clerk. 
 

                      RESOLUTION  
Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and   
pursuant to Education Law approves the Terms and Conditions of Employment for the Assistant  
Superintendent for Instruction and School Improvement for the period of July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024.   
The contract is on file with the District Clerk. 
 

        RESOLUTION  
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and   

pursuant to Education Law approves the amended Terms and Conditions of Employment for the   
Director of Business Operations and Finance for the period of July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024.  The contract  
is on file with the District Clerk. 

 
25. Appoint Volunteers 

RESOLUTION 
        Be it resolved that the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and          
        pursuant to Education Law approves the following individuals to work as a volunteer in the district for  
        the 2022-2023 school year. 

 
Sarah Lynn Patricia Luciano Anna Furletti Brooke Angelo 
Aron Gardner Shirley Luciano Nicole Smith Joseph Compton 

 
6.  Award Bids 

A motion for approval of the following items as listed under Award Bids is made by John Boogaard and 
seconded by Tina Reed with the motion approved 7 -0. 
 
a. Award Bid for Interior Painting  

       It is the recommendation to award the NRWCSD High School Gymnasium Painting Bid to Armstrong 
 Painting, LLC. May 8, 2023, Bid Opening in the following amounts:  

 
$24,500.00 Base Bid 
 



 

137 
 

                RESOLUTION 
                Be it Resolved, the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools     
                and pursuant to Education Law, authorizes awarding a bid to the bidder deemed to be the lowest    
                responsible meeting the bid specifications as follows. 

 
          Bidder                                                                                  Items                                                                                 Amount_____ 
Armstrong Painting, LLC.                                    High School Gymnasium Painting                          Base Bid   $24,500.00 
36 Fisherman’s Creek 
Baldwinsville, NY  13027 
                                                                                                                                                                         ________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                                            TOTAL          $24,500.00 
 
 
b. Bid Award for NRWCSD 2022-23 Capital Outlay Project  

It is the recommendation of our Architects, SEI Design Group, to award the General Construction Bid for 
2022-23 Capital Outlay Project following competitive sealed bids received on May 10, 2023, as follows: 

 
 General Construction Contract 
 Massa Construction, Inc. 
 Base Bid Contract Sum     $105,000.00 
 Alternate #1 (Hollow Metal Interior Windows)  $ -26,000.00 
 Total       $  79,000.00 
 
 RESOLUTION 

Be it Resolved, the Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools and 
pursuant to Education Law, authorizes awarding Capital Outlay general Construction Bid as follows: 

 
 
Contractor                                                                                  Items                                                                                      Amount__ 
Massa Construction, Inc  2022-23 Capital Outlay Project                      $79,000.00 
630 Pre-Emption Road 
Geneva, NY  14456 

 
Board Member Requests/Comments/Discussion: 

• There was no discussion 
 
Good News: 

• Various Newspaper articles 
 

Informational Items: 
• Claims Auditor Reports 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
A motion was requested to enter executive session to discuss the employment history of a specific employee. 
 
The motion was made by Linda Eygnor and seconded by John Boogaard with motion approved 7-0.   
 
Time entered: 6:02 p.m. 
 
Return to regular session at 9:59p.m. 

 



 

138 
 

Adjournment: 
 
A motion was requested to adjourn the regular meeting. 
 
Motion for approval was made by Linda Eygnor and seconded by Tina Reed with motion approved 7-0.   
 
Time adjourned: 10:00p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Tina St. John, Clerk of the Board of Education 
 











































1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NORTH ROSE – WOLCOTT CENTRAL 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

 

Report of Reserve Funds and Use of Reserves Policy 

 

Updated June, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

 

Index 

        Page 

Index       2 

Reserve Funds Overview        3 

Tax Certiorari Reserve     4 

Worker’s Compensation Reserve    5 

Unemployment Insurance Reserve   6 

Capital Building Reserve     7 

Capital Bus Reserve     8 

Liability Reserve      9 

Employee Benefits Accrued Liability Reserve   10 

ERS Retirement Contribution Reserve   11 

TRS Reserve      12 

Debt Service Reserve     13 

Summary of Reserve Balances  Chart  



3 

 

Overview 

The establishment and funding of reserves is an important consideration in the maintenance of a sound 
financial plan for any school district.  While strict adherence to state law is required to ensure reserves are 
both legal and appropriate, adequately funded reserves are vital to the long-term health and stability of the 
school district.  This concept is recognized by the New York State Comptroller: 

Saving for future projects, acquisitions, and other allowable purposes is an important planning 
consideration for local governments and school districts.  Reserve funds provide a mechanism for legally 
saving money to finance all or part of future infrastructure, equipment, and other requirements.  Reserve 
funds can also provide a degree of financial stability by reducing reliance on indebtedness to finance 
capital projects and acquisitions.  In uncertain economic times, reserve funds can also provide officials 
with a welcomed budgetary option that can help mitigate the need to cut services or to raise taxes.  In 
good times, money not needed for current purposes can often be set aside in reserves for future use. 
(Office of the New York State Comptroller – Local Government Management Guide – Reserve Funds, Pg. 1) 

The North Rose – Wolcott Central School District believes that judicious use of reserves greatly reduces long-term 
borrowing costs, smooths large fluctuations in tax rates, and minimizes the possibility of draconian mid-year 
budget cuts which would have a direct impact on students.  It believes it is in the best interest of both the students 
and taxpayers to prudently establish and use reserves to weather the financial storms and uncertainties that will 
occur.  Again, the Comptroller notes: 

The practice of planning ahead and systematically saving for capital acquisitions and other contingencies 
is considered prudent management.  Saving for future capital needs can reduce or eliminate interest and 
other costs associated with debt issuances.  Similarly, certain reserve funds can be utilized to protect the 
budget against known risks (a potential lawsuit) or unknown risks (a major ice storm).  (Office of the New 
York State Comptroller – Local Government Management Guide – Reserve Funds, Pg. 2) 

This quote reflects the two purposes for the establishment of reserves: 

1. Saving money for a large, one time future expenditure such as a capital reserve for the replacement of a 
roof as an example. 

2. Reserves which are intended to protect the district against a large, currently unforeseen risk. 

Since New York State law mandates that expenditures can be no greater than the budget approved by the voters in 
May, the North Rose – Wolcott Central School District budgets conservatively and practices fiscal prudence 
throughout each budget year to ensure that unanticipated expenditures do not result in mid-year budget cuts 
which would have an immediate impact on students.  This practice has allowed and will allow the district in the 
future to weather state aid holdbacks and other negative budget impacts without impacting instructional 
programs.  However, conservative budgeting can also result in budget surpluses at year-end.  The Board of 
Education reviews any budget surpluses and determines the best use of these surpluses including transfers to 
voter or Board of Education approved reserves or to a reduction in the ensuing year’s tax levy.   Legally established 
reserves can provide many benefits to the school district and to its taxpayers.  However, these reserves can also 
cause confusion when their purpose is not clearly understood by the community.  The purpose of this document is 
to detail the North Rose – Wolcott Central School District’s plan for the purpose, accumulation, use, and 
maintenance of reserve funds. 



4 

 

TAX CERTIORARI RESERVE 

Purpose:  Any School District may establish a reserve fund for the payment of judgments and claims in tax 
certiorari proceedings in accordance with article seven of the real property tax law, without approval of the 
qualified voters of the District, provided, however, that the total of the monies held in such reserve fund shall not 
exceed that amount which might reasonably be deemed necessary to meet anticipated judgments and claims 
arising out of such tax certiorari proceedings. 

Use of Unexpended Balances:  Funds reserved for tax certiorari judgments and claims pursuant to Education Law, 
Section 3651[1-a] that are not expended for the payment of judgments or claims arising out of tax certiorari 
proceedings for the tax roll in the year the monies are deposited to the fund and/or that will not be “reasonably 
required to pay any such judgment or claim”, must be returned to the General Fund on or before the first day of 
the fourth fiscal year following the deposit of such monies to the reserve fund.   

Balance June 30, 2020:   $0 

Balance June 30, 2021:   $21,324 

Balance  June 30, 2022:   $42,864 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023     $42,864 

 

Ideal Balance:   Potential liability for all outstanding judgments or claims arising out of tax certiorari proceedings. 

Discussion:   This reserve was funded in August of 2020 when we received notice of five potential tax 
certiorari proceedings.  The remaining funds should remain in the reserve until a final determination is made on 
the remaining property.  We will continue to fund and liquidate as appropriate.  I am recommending no increase to 
this reserve currently.    

 
 



5 

 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION RESERVE 

Purpose:  An expenditure shall be made from such fund only for the payment of compensation and benefits, 
medical, hospital or other expense authorized by article two of the workmen’s compensation law and expenses of 
administering the self-insurance program for such School District. 

Use of Unexpended Balances:  If the monies in the fund exceed the amounts required to be paid for 
compensation, benefits and expenses, plus any additional amount required to pay all pending claims, the 
governing board, within 60 days of the close of such fiscal year, may elect to transfer all or part of the excess 
amount to certain other reserve funds or may apply all or part of the excess to the budget appropriation of the 
next succeeding fiscal year. 

Balance June 30, 2018:   $228,734 

Balance June 30, 2019:   $203,552 

Balance June 30, 2020:   $175,937 

Balance June 30, 2021:   $176,071 

Balance June 30, 2022:   $150,797 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023,     $154,800 

 

 

 

Ideal Balance:   Approximately equivalent to one year of the District’s annual contributions to the consortium. 

Discussion:  Our 2023-24 contributions to the consortium will be $154,220.  This is an increase from our 
2022-23 contributions of $152,982.   I am recommending no increase to this reserve currently.    



6 

 

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE RESERVE 

Purpose:  An expenditure shall be made from such fund only as required by law to pay into the unemployment 
insurance fund an amount equivalent to the amount of benefits paid to claimants and charged to the account of 
such school district in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (e) of subdivision one of section five hundred 
eighty-one of the labor law. 

Use of Unexpended Balances:  If at the end of any fiscal year the monies in such fund shall exceed the amounts 
required to be paid pursuant to subdivision four of this section plus any additional amount required to pay all 
pending claims, the School Board may within sixty days of the close of such fiscal year, elect to transfer said excess, 
or any part thereof, to any fund authorized by this article or section 3651 of the education law; and/or (b) apply 
said excess, or any part thereof to the budget appropriation of the next succeeding fiscal year.  

Balance June 30, 2018:   $124,755 

Balance June 30, 2019:   $128,369 

Balance June 30, 2020:   $32,535 

Balance June 30, 2021:   $31,255 

Balance June 30, 2022:   $31,309 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023,     $32,254 

 

Ideal Balance:  Approximately 0.25% of payroll appropriations ($32,370 is 0.25% of payroll appropriations). 

Discussion:  The BOE determined that this reserve was overfunded and transferred money out of it and into the 
Capital Building Reserve in August of 2017.   

In 2020-21, the government has started to fund unemployment costs through the pandemic.   As a result, the 
District maintains a credit balance with the NYS Labor Departments Unemployment Division.  This credit will be 
applied to our account to pay future costs.  I recommend that we leave our ideal balance at approximately 0.25% 
of payroll appropriations.   I am recommending a $0 increase to this reserve currently. 

 



7 

 

CAPITAL BUILDING RESERVE 

2022 Capital Reserve 
Authorized: May 2022 
Term:  10 Years 
Funding Cap: $15,000,000 
 

Purpose:  Used to pay the cost of any object or purpose for which bonds may be issued.  Voter authorization is 
required for both the establishment of the reserve and for payments from the reserve.  The form of the required 
legal notice for the vote on establishing the reserve and the form of the proposition to be placed on the ballot are 
set forth in ş3651 of the Education Law. 

Use of Unexpended Balances:  The Voters may authorize the transfer of all or any part of this reserve fund to any 
other reserve fund established pursuant to ş3651 of the Education Law.  Whenever the Voters shall determine that 
the original purpose for which a reserve fund has been established is no longer desirable, the school authorities 
may liquidate, first applying its proceeds to any outstanding bonded indebtedness and the balance to the annual 
tax levy.   

Balance June 30, 2018:  $629,688 

Balance June 30, 2019:   $647,928 

Balance June 30, 2020:   $657,757 

Balance June 30, 2021:   $3,036,697 

Balance June 30, 2022:   $2,250,000 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023,     $3,555,000 

 

 

Ideal Balance:  Up to the maximum amount authorized by the Voters. 

 

Discussion:  On 5/16/17, the voters authorized establishment of a $5 m reserve.  This 2017 Capital was fully 
funded as of June 30th 2021.  The balance of this reserve was applied to fund the District’s new $11.1M Capital 
Project approved in December 2021.   On May 17, 2022, the voters authorized a new Capital Reserve known as the 
2022 Capital Reserve Fund with a 10-year life and a funding cap of $15M (plus accrued interest).  We are 
prioritizing the funding of this reserve in anticipation of our next capital project.       

 



8 

 

CAPITAL BUS RESERVE 

2019 Bus Reserve 
Authorized: May 2019 
Term:  10 Years 
Funding Cap: $2,000,000 
 
 
Purpose:  To be used to pay for bus purchases.  Voter authorization is required for both the establishment of the 
reserve and payments from the reserve. 

Use of Unexpended Balances:  The Voters may authorize the transfer of all or any part of this reserve fund to any 
other reserve fund established pursuant to ş3651 of the Education Law.  Whenever the Voters shall determine that 
the original purpose for which a reserve fund has been established is no longer desirable, the school authorities 
may liquidate, first applying its proceeds to any outstanding bonded indebtedness and the balance to the annual 
tax levy.   

Balance June 30, 2018:   $1,295,314 

Balance June 30, 2019:   $1,229,826 

Balance June 30, 2020:   $1,090,392 

Balance June 30, 2021:    $1,239,371 

Balance June 30, 2022:  $1,766,970 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023,     $1,810,072 

 

 

Ideal Balance:  Up to the maximum amount authorized by the Voters. 

 

Discussion:   In May of 2019 the voters approved the creation of a new reserve with a maximum funding level 
of $2.0 m.  As of June 30, 2021, this reserve’s cumulative funding was at $1,236,869.  We, therefore, have 
authorization to contribute an additional $763,131.  Our plan is to annually replenish this reserve with both the aid 
we receive for prior bus purchases and the estimated share of our local costs to provide an appropriate level of 
funding for future bus purchases.   On May 16th, 2022, the voters authorized the purchase of 5 buses for 2022-23 in 
the net amount of $727,668.   The voters also authorized the establishment of a new 5 year Bus Reserve with 
funding up to $$6,000,000.      

  

 

 

 



9 

 

 

LIABILITY RESERVE 

Purpose:  To establish and maintain a program of reserves to cover property loss and liability claims. 

 

Use of Unexpended Balances:  The balance of the reserve shall not exceed three percent, exclusive of any planned 
balance presently authorized, of the annual budget of the district to cover property loss and liability claims. 
Separate funds may be established for property loss and for liability claims and the separate identity of each fund 
may be maintained.  Such reserve funds shall not be reduced to amounts less than the total of the amounts 
estimated to be necessary to cover incurred but unsettled claims or suits including expenses in connection 
therewith other than by payments for losses for which such amounts were established.  Payments from such 
reserve funds shall not be made for purposes other than those for which such funds were established without 
authorizations by Vote of the electors of the Districts, except that such Board May authorize use of such funds 
other than amounts allocated for unsettled claims or suits including expenses in connection therewith to pay 
premiums for insurance policies purchased to insure subsequent losses in areas previously self-insured, in the 
event of dissolution of the self-insurance plan. 

Balance June 30, 2019:   $870,466 

Balance June 30, 2020:   $952,918 

Balance June 30, 2021:   $967,362 

Balance June 30, 2022:   $969,012 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023,     $994,012 

 

Ideal Balance:   Approximately 3% of the budget 

Discussion:  After discussions with our external auditors and insurance representative, potential uncovered risks 
exist in the areas of: 

• Cyber security 

• Pollution Remediation Claims  

• Special Education Claims 

• Employment Related Claims 

• Potential 3020a cases tied to the new APPR 

• Other potential litigation 

The fund is near 3% of our budget, therefore no transfer is being recommended as of June 30,2023. 



10 

 

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT ACCRUED LIABILITY RESERVE 

Purpose:   These monies can be used to pay for unused sick leave, holiday leave, vacation leave, and time 
allowance granted in lieu of overtime compensation and other forms of payment. 

Use of Unexpended Balances:   If the School Board determines that such fund is no longer needed, any 
remaining monies may be transferred to any other reserve fund authorized by General Municipal Law or , a 
reserve fund established under Education Law Section ş3651, but only to the extent that the monies in the 
employee benefit accrued liability reserve fund exceed a sum sufficient to pay all liabilities incurred or accrued 
against the employee benefit accrued liability fund, as certified to the School Board by the fiscal and legal officers 
of the school prior to the discontinuance of the fund. 

Balance June 30, 2018:   $83,498 

Balance June 30, 2019:   $89,498 

Balance June 30, 2020:   $86,633 

Balance June 30, 2021:   $2,013 

Balance June 30, 2022:   $197,962 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023,     $200,000 

 

 

Ideal Balance:  In accordance with an annual calculation of current year liability for employees at the close of 
the year.    

Discussion:   The balance in this reserve currently approximates the estimated liability at year end.   I am 
recommending up to an additional $50,000 to transfer to this reserve from surplus as of June 30, 2023, to cover 
the estimated liability beyond one year.    

 

 
 



11 

 

RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION RESERVE (ERS) 

Purpose:  The governing board of a school district, by resolution, may establish a reserve for the purpose of 
financing retirement contributions made to the NY State and Local Employees’ Retirement System.  Establishing or 
expending the reserve does not require voter approval.  Expenditures may only be to finance retirement 
contributions.  Effective April 1, 2019, the law allows school districts and BOCES to establish a sub-fund in the 
retirement contribution reserve fund to include amounts payable to the New York State Teachers Retirement 
System (NYSTRS).  This TRS sub-fund can be used to pay amounts due to NYSTRS or to offset all or some of the 
costs. 

Use of Unexpended Balances:  The Board may authorize the transfer of a portion of the moneys in the retirement 
contribution reserve to a reserve fund established pursuant to Sections 6-c, 6-d, 6-e, 6-f, or 6-g of the General 
Municipal Law, or a reserve fund established pursuant to Section ş3651 of the Education Law.  Such a transfer is 
subject to a public hearing.  If the Board determines that the retirement contribution reserve is not longer needed, 
the Board may terminate the fund by resolution.  The resolution must transfer any monies remaining in such fund 
to other reserve funds established pursuant to Section ş3651 of Education Law. 

Balance June 30, 2018:   $879,857 

Balance June 30, 2019:   $877,752 

Balance June 30, 2020:   $955,750 

Balance June 30, 2021:   $1,549,529 

Balance June 30, 2022:   $1,251,840 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023,     $1,234,804 

 

Ideal Balance:  Three to five years’ worth of annual contributions to the NY State and Local Employees’ Retirement 
System 

Discussion:    We have appropriated $425,000 from this reserve to support ERS costs in 2022-23.  In 2023-24, we 
have reduced that level to $375,000.   This in more in line with actual ERS general fund.    

 

 



12 

 

TEACHER’S RETIREMENT (TRS) RESERVE 

Purpose:  The Board of Education may authorize expenditures from this Reserve Sub-Fund.  Except as otherwise 
provided by law, moneys in this Reserve Sub-Fund may only be appropriated to finance retirement contributions 
to the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System, and/or to offset all or a portion of the amount deducted from 
the moneys apportioned to the District from the State for the support of schools pursuant to Section 521 of the 
Education Law. 

The moneys contributed annually to the Reserve Sub-Fund shall not exceed 2% of the total compensation or 
salaries of all teachers employed by the District who are members of TRS paid during the immediately preceding 
fiscal year. 

The balance of the Reserve Sub-Fund shall not exceed 10% of the total compensation or salaries of all teachers 
employed by the District who are members of TRS paid during the immediately preceding fiscal year. 

Effective April 1, 2019 the law allows school districts and BOCES to establish a sub-fund in the retirement 
contribution reserve fund to include amounts payable to the New York State Teachers Retirement System 
(NYSTRS).  This TRS sub-fund can be used to pay amounts due to NYSTRS or to offset all or some of the costs 

  

Balance June 30, 2019:   $197,266 

Balance June 30, 2020:   $200,259 

Balance June 30, 2021:   $406,487 

Balance June 30,, 2022:   $407,180 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023,     $468,172 

 

Ideal Balance of sub-fund:  Up to 10% of teacher salaries in the prior year 

Discussion:   The BOE passed a resolution in June of 2019 to establish this sub-fund and has been able to fund 
this reserve steadily.   I am recommending an increase of up to $100,000 to this reserve currently.   We have 
appropriated $50,000 from this reserve to support TRS costs in 2022-23.  For 2023-24. We have increased the level 
of appropriation to $75,000 

 

 



13 

 

RESERVE FOR DEBT SERVICE 

Purpose:   According to General Municipal Law Sec 6-1, the Reserve for Debt Service must be established for the 
purpose of retiring the outstanding obligations upon the sale of District property or Capital Improvement that was 
financed by obligations that remain outstanding at the time of the sale.  Also, earnings on project monies invested 
together with unused proceeds are reported here.  

 

Balance June 30, 2019:   $407,414 

Balance June 30, 2020:   $1,101.706 

Balance June 30, 2021:   $1,705,333 

Balance June 30, 2022:   $1,666,603 

Anticipated Balance June 30, 2023,     $1,572,872 

 

Ideal Balance:   As determined by unused capital improvement obligations 

Discussion:   This reserve is used to help offset our debt service costs.  In 2022-23 we have appropriated 
$100,000 in support of the General Fund Budget.   In 2023-24, we have appropriated $125,000 to support the 
General Fund Budget.    This reserve is accounted for in the Debt Service Fund 

 

 



14 

 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

Tax Certiorari Reserve 0 0 21,324 42,864 42,864 42,864 42,864 42,864 42,864

Worker Compensation Reserve 203,552 175,937 176,071 150,797 154,797 129,797 104,797 79,797 54,797

Unemployment Ins. Reserve 128,369 32,535 31,255 31,309 32,445 32,795 33,145 33,495 33,845

Capital Building Reserve 647,928 657,757 3,036,697 2,250,000 3,555,000 1,235,000 2,010,000 2,535,000 3,060,000

Capital Bus Reserve 1,229,826 1,090,392 1,239,371 1,766,970 1,810,072 1,635,072 1,460,072 1,285,072 1,110,072

Liability Reserve 870,466 952,918 967,362 969,012 994,012 1,006,012 1,018,012 1,030,012 1,042,012

Employee Benefit Accrued Liability 89,498 86,633 2,013 197,962 200,002 190,002 180,002 170,002 160,002

ERS Retirement Contribution Reser 877,752 955,750 1,549,529 1,251,840 1,234,804 1,184,804 1,134,804 1,084,804 1,034,804

TRS  Reserve 197,266 200,259 406,487 407,180 468,180 443,180 418,180 393,180 368,180

Debt Service Reserve 407,414 1,101,706 1,705,333 1,666,603 1,572,872 1,516,603 1,422,872 1,366,603 1,272,872

Totals 4,652,071 5,253,887 9,135,442 8,734,537 10,065,048 7,416,129 7,824,748 8,020,829 8,179,448

Increase  (Decrease) 601,816 3,881,555 -400,905 1,330,511 -2,648,919 408,619 196,081 158,619

Percentage Change from Prior year 13% 74% -8% 15% -29% 5% 2% 2%

PROJECTED BALANCES

Summary of Actual and Projected Balances

From 2018-19 Through 2026-27

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

2018-19
2019-20

2020-21
2021-22

2022-23
2023-24

2024-25
2025-26

2026-27

 



































































































Claims Audit Report NRW Warrant 64 05-31-23 

 

Summary of findings:   

  
I checked all transactions in Warrant 64 all good. 
 
No Findings  
 
 

 
 
 

 
Russell Harris 
585-738-0321 


	2023-06-08 agenda
	Policies for 1st Reading
	2023-5-25 unofficial minutes
	April 2023 Treasurer's Report
	Reserve Fund Plan June 2023
	Policies for Approval
	Claims Audit Report NRWCS 5-31-23



